

# 861 Receiving Advice/Acceptance Certificate

# X12/V4010/511

Version: 1.1 Publication: 01.24.2013



Version Number	Version Date	Description of Change	Reason of Change	Author	Change Reference
1.0	01.24.2013	Initial release	Original Document	Adrian Birau	All Sections
1.1	02.07.2013	Add samples		Adrian Birau	Samples



# **Table of Contents**

861 Receiving Advice/Acceptance Certificate	3
ISA Interchange Control Header	4
GS Functional Group Header	6
ST Transaction Set Header	8
BRA Beginning Segment for Receiving Advice or Acceptance Certificate	9
REF Reference Identification	10
DTM Date/Time Reference	11
Loop Receiving Conditions	12
Loop Subline Item Detail	19
CTT Transaction Totals	21
SE Transaction Set Trailer	
GE Functional Group Trailer	23
IEA Interchange Control Trailer	24
Samples	24



## 861 Receiving Advice/Acceptance Certificate

Functional Group = RC

#### **Purpose:**

This Draft Standard for Trial Use contains the format and establishes the data contents of the Receiving Advice/Acceptance Certificate Transaction Set (861) for use within the context of an Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) environment. The transaction set can be used to provide for customary and established business and industry practice relative to the notification of receipt or formal acceptance of goods and services.

#### Not Defined:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>Id</u> ISA GS	<u>Segment Name</u> Interchange Control Header Functional Group Header	<u>Req</u> М М	Max Use 1 1	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u> Must use Must use
Heading:							
Pos	ld	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	Repeat	Notes	Usage
010	ST	Transaction Set Header	Μ	1			Must use
020	BRA	Beginning Segment for Receiving Advice or Acceptance Certificate	Μ	1		N1/020	Must use
050	REF	Reference Identification	0	>1			Used
070	DTM	Date/Time Reference	M	10			Must use
Detail:							
Pos	ld	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	Repeat	Notes	Usage
LOOP II		Segment Name	Key	Max 03e	200000	NOLES	Usage
010	RCD	Receiving Conditions	0	1	200000		Used
020	SN1	Item Detail (Shipment)	0	1			Used
040	LIN	Item Identification	0	100			Used
050	PID	Product/Item Description	0	1000			Used
070	REF	Reference Identification	0	12			Used
100	PRF	Purchase Order Reference	0	25			Used
LOOP II	D - SLN		·		<u>100</u>		
190	SLN	Subline Item Detail	0	1			Used
Summary:							
Pos	ld	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	Repeat	Notes	Usage
010	CTT	Transaction Totals	0	1	Ropour	N3/010	Used
020	SE	Transaction Set Trailer	M	1		110/010	Must use
020	01						made abo
Not Define	ed:						
Pos	ld	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	Repeat	Notes	Usage
	GE	Functional Group Trailer	M	1			Must use
	IEA	Interchange Control Trailer	M	1			Must use
		0					

#### Notes:

1/020 This transaction set is a Receiving Advice unless BRA04 contains a value of "8". When BRA04 contains a value of "8", the transaction set is an Acceptance Certificate and the units received is the units accepted.
3/010 The number of line items (CTT01) is the accumulation of the number of RCD segments. If used, hash total (CTT02) is the sum of the value of quantities received (RCD02) for each RCD segment.



### **ISA Interchange Control Header**

User Option (Usage):

Must use

#### Purpose:

To start and identify an interchange of zero or more functional groups and interchange-related control segments

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u> ISA01	<u>ld</u> 101	Element Name Authorization Information Qualifier	Req M	Type ID	<u>Min/Max</u> 2/2	<u>Usage</u> Must use
		Description: Code to identify the type of info All valid standard codes are used. (Total			uthorization In	formation
ISA02	102	Authorization Information	Μ	AN	10/10	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Information used for additional sender or the data in the interchange; the type Information Qualifier (I01)				
ISA03	103	Security Information Qualifier	Μ	ID	2/2	Must use
		Description: Code to identify the type of info All valid standard codes are used. (Total			ecurity Inform	ation
ISA04	104	Security Information	Μ	AN	10/10	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> This is used for identifying the sender or the data in the interchange; the type Information Qualifier (I03)				
ISA05	105	Interchange ID Qualifier	Μ	ID	2/2	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Qualifier to designate the system/method of code structure used to designate the sender or receiver ID element being qualified <b>All valid standard codes are used. (Total Codes: 38)</b>				
ISA06	106	Interchange Sender ID	Μ	AN	15/15	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Identification code published b receiver ID to route data to them; the sender element				
ISA07	105	Interchange ID Qualifier	Μ	ID	2/2	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Qualifier to designate the system the sender or receiver ID element being qua <b>All valid standard codes are used. (Total</b>	lified		de structure us	sed to designate
ISA08	107	Interchange Receiver ID	Μ	AN	15/15	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Identification code published bused by the sender as their sending ID, thus receiving ID to route data to them				
ISA09	108	Interchange Date	Μ	DT	6/6	Must use
		Description: Date of the interchange				
ISA10	109	Interchange Time	Μ	ТМ	4/4	Must use
		Description: Time of the interchange				
ISA11	110	Interchange Control Standards Identifier	Μ	ID	1/1	Must use



		<b>Description:</b> Code to identify the agency remessage that is enclosed by the interchang <b>All valid standard codes are used. (Total</b>	e heade	r and traile		ard used by the	
ISA12	I11	Interchange Control Version Number	Μ	ID	5/5	Must use	
		Description: Code specifying the version n All valid standard codes are used. (Total			hange contro	ol segments	
ISA13	I12	Interchange Control Number	Μ	N0	9/9	Must use	
		Description: A control number assigned by	the inte	rchange s	ender		
ISA14	I13	Acknowledgment Requested	Μ	ID	1/1	Must use	
		Description: Code sent by the sender to re All valid standard codes are used. (Total			ige acknowle	dgment (TA1)	
ISA15	114	Usage Indicator	Μ	ID	1/1	Must use	
		<b>Description:</b> Code to indicate whether data enclosed by this interchange envelope is test, production or information All valid standard codes are used. (Total Codes: 3)					
ISA16	l15	Component Element Separator	Μ		1/1	Must use	
		<b>Description:</b> Type is not applicable; the component element separator is a delimiter and not a data element; this field provides the delimiter used to separate component data elements within a composite data structure; this value must be different than the data element					

separator and the segment terminator



### **GS Functional Group Header**

User Option (Usage):

Must use

#### Purpose:

To indicate the beginning of a functional group and to provide control information

Element Sur Ref	mmary <b>:</b> Id	Element Na	me	Req	Туре	Min/Max	Usage
GS01	479		Identifier Code	M	ID	2/2	Must use
		Description	: Code identifying a group of ap	plication	related	transaction set	S
		<u>Code</u>	ummary (Total Codes: 240, Inc <u>Name</u>				
		RC	Receiving Advice/Acceptance				
GS02	142		Sender's Code	M	AN	2/15	Must use
		Description partners	: Code identifying party sending	g transmi	ssion; co	odes agreed to	by trading
GS03	124	Application	Receiver's Code	Μ	AN	2/15	Must use
		Description partners	: Code identifying party receivir	ng transm	nission; c	codes agreed t	o by trading
GS04	373	Date		Μ	DT	8/8	Must use
		Description	: Date expressed as CCYYMM	DD			
GS05	337	Time		Μ	ТМ	4/8	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Time expressed in 24-hour clock time as follows: HHMM, or HHMMSS, or HHMMSSD, or HHMMSSDD, where H = hours (00-23), M = minutes (00-59), S = integer seconds (00-59) and DD = decimal seconds; decimal seconds are expressed as follows: D = tenths (0-9) and DD = hundredths (00-99)					9), S = integer
GS06	28	Group Cont	rol Number	Μ	N0	1/9	Must use
		Description	: Assigned number originated a	and maint	tained by	the sender	
GS07	455	Responsibl	e Agency Code	Μ	ID	1/2	Must use
		with Data El	: Code identifying the issuer of ement 480 Indard codes are used. (Total			code is used	in conjunction
GS08	480	Version / Re Code	elease / Industry Identifier	Μ	AN	1/12	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Code indicating the version, release, subrelease, and industry identifier of the EDI standard being used, including the GS and GE segments; if code in DE455 in GS segment is X, then in DE 480 positions 1-3 are the version number; positions 4-6 are the release and subrelease, level of the version; and positions 7-12 are the industry or trade association identifiers (optionally assigned by user); if code in DE455 in GS segment is T, then other formats are allowed					
		CodeList So <u>Code</u> 004010	ummary (Total Codes: 39, Inclu <u>Name</u> Draft Standards Approved for Board through October 1997	,	ion by AS	SC X12 Proced	dures Review



#### Semantics:

- 1. GS04 is the group date.
- 2. GS05 is the group time.
- 3. The data interchange control number GS06 in this header must be identical to the same data element in the associated functional group trailer, GE02.

#### Comments:

1. A functional group of related transaction sets, within the scope of X12 standards, consists of a collection of similar transaction sets enclosed by a functional group header and a functional group trailer.



### **ST Transaction Set Header**

User Option (Usage):

Must use

#### **Purpose:**

To indicate the start of a transaction set and to assign a control number

#### **Element Summary:**

Ref	ld	Element Name	Req	Type	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
ST01	143	Transaction Set Identifier Code	Μ	ID	3/3	Must use
		Description: Code uniquely identifying a Tr All valid standard codes are used. (Total				
ST02	329	Transaction Set Control Number	Μ	AN	4/9	Must use
<b>Description:</b> Identifying control number that must be unique within the transaction se functional group assigned by the originator for a transaction set						

#### Semantics:

1. The transaction set identifier (ST01) used by the translation routines of the interchange partners to select the appropriate transaction set definition (e.g., 810 selects the Invoice Transaction Set).



# BRA Beginning Segment for Receiving Advice or Acceptance Certificate

#### User Option (Usage):

Must use

#### **Purpose:**

To indicate the beginning of a Receiving Advice or Acceptance Certificate Transaction Set and transmit an identifying number, date, and time

Element Su Ref BRA01	mmary: <u>Id</u> 127	Element Name Reference Identification	<u>Req</u> M	<u>Type</u> AN	<u>Min/Max</u> 1/30	<u>Usage</u> Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Reference information as de specified by the Reference Identification C		particula	ar Transaction	Set or as
BRA02	373	Date	Μ	DT	8/8	Must use
		Description: Date expressed as CCYYM	MDD			
BRA03	353	Transaction Set Purpose Code	Μ	ID	2/2	Must use
		Description: Code identifying purpose of	transactio	n set		
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 65, Inc <u>Code</u> <u>Name</u> 00 Original	cluded: 1)			
BRA04	962	Receiving Advice or Acceptance Certificate Type Code	Μ	ID	1/1	Must use
		Description: Code specifying type of rece	eiving advi	ce		
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 11, Inc.CodeName2Post Receipt Advice	cluded: 1)			

#### Semantics:

1. BRA02 is the date that the receiving advice transaction set is created.

2. BRA05 is the time that the receiving advice transaction set is created.



### **REF Reference Identification**

User Option (Usage):

Used

Purpose:

To specify identifying information

Element Su	mmary:						
Ref	ld	Element N	ame	Req	Type	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
REF01	128	Reference	Identification Qualifier	Μ	ID	2/3	Must use
		Descriptio	Description: Code qualifying the Reference Identification				
		CodeList \$	Summary (Total Codes: 1503, Ir	ncluded:	3)		
		Code	Name				
		PK	Packing List Number				
		VR	Vendor ID Number				
		ZZ	Mutually Defined				
REF02	127	Reference	Identification	Х	AN	1/30	Used
			n: Reference information as def y the Reference Identification Q		a particula	ar Transaction	Set or as

#### Syntax Rules:

1. R0203 - At least one of REF02 or REF03 is required.

#### Semantics:

1. REF04 contains data relating to the value cited in REF02.



### **DTM Date/Time Reference**

User Option (Usage):

Must use

Purpose:

To specify pertinent dates and times

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u> DTM01	<u>ld</u> 374	<u>Element Name</u> Date/Time Qualifier	<u>Req</u> М	Type ID	<u>Min/Max</u> 3/3	<u>Usage</u> Must use		
		Description: Code specifying type of date or time, or both date and time						
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 1112, IrCodeName008Purchase Order Received	ncluded:	1)				
DTM02	373	Date	Х	DT	8/8	Used		
		Description: Date expressed as CCYYMM	DD					
DTM03	337	Time	Х	TM	4/8	Used		
		<b>Description:</b> Time expressed in 24-hour clock time as follows: HHMM, or HHMMSS, or HHMMSSD, or HHMMSSDD, where H = hours (00-23), M = minutes (00-59), S = integer seconds (00-59) and DD = decimal seconds; decimal seconds are expressed as follows: D = $(1 + 1)^{-1}$						

#### Syntax Rules:

1. R020305 - At least one of DTM02, DTM03 or DTM05 is required.

2. C0403 - If DTM04 is present, then DTM03 is required.

3. P0506 - If either DTM05 or DTM06 is present, then the other is required.

tenths (0-9) and DD = hundredths (00-99)



# **Loop Receiving Conditions**

User Option (Usage):

Used

#### Purpose:

To report receiving conditions and specify contested quantities

#### Loop Summary:

Pos	ld	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Usage</u>
010	RCD	Receiving Conditions	0	1		Used
020	SN1	Item Detail (Shipment)	0	1		Used
040	LIN	Item Identification	0	100		Used
050	PID	Product/Item Description	0	1000		Used
070	REF	Reference Identification	0	12		Used
100	PRF	Purchase Order Reference	0	25		Used
190		Loop SLN	0		100	Used

### **RCD Receiving Conditions**

User Option (Usage):

Used

#### Purpose:

To report receiving conditions and specify contested quantities

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u> RCD01	<u>ld</u> 350	Element Name Assigned Identification	Req O	<u>Type</u> AN	<u>Min/Max</u> 1/20	<u>Usage</u> Used		
		Description: Alphanumeric characters assigned for differentiation within a transaction set						
RCD02	663	Quantity Units Received or Accepted	Х	R	1/9	Used		
	Description: Number of Units Received or Accepted							
RCD03	C001	Composite Unit of Measure	Х	Comp		Used		
		<b>Description:</b> To identify a composite unit of measure(See Figures Appendix for examples of use)						
RCD03-01	355	Unit or Basis for Measurement Code	Μ	ID	2/2	Must use		
	<b>Description:</b> Code specifying the units in which a value is being expressed, or manner in which a measurement has been taken <b>All valid standard codes are used. (Total Codes: 794)</b>							
RCD06	667	Quantity in Question	Х	R	1/9	Used		
Description: Number of units contested because of physical condition or status of units						tatus of units		

FLEXTRONICS

RCD07	C001	Composite Unit of Measure	Х	Comp		Used	
		<b>Description:</b> To identify a composite unit o use)	f measu	re(See Figu	res Appendix f	or examples of	
RCD07-01	355	Unit or Basis for Measurement Code	Μ	ID	2/2	Must use	
		<b>Description:</b> Code specifying the units in w which a measurement has been taken <b>All valid standard codes are used. (Total</b>			g expressed, o	r manner in	
RCD08	412	Receiving Condition Code	Х	ID	2/2	Used	
		<b>Description:</b> Code designating physical condition or status of units received in a specific shipment <b>All valid standard codes are used. (Total Codes: 15)</b>					
RCD09	667	Quantity in Question	Х	R	1/9	Used	
		Description: Number of units contested because of physical condition or status of units					
RCD10	C001	Composite Unit of Measure	Х	Comp		Used	
		<b>Description:</b> To identify a composite unit o use)	f measu	re(See Figu	res Appendix f	or examples of	
RCD10-01	355	Unit or Basis for Measurement Code	Μ	ID	2/2	Must use	
		<b>Description:</b> Code specifying the units in w which a measurement has been taken <b>All valid standard codes are used. (Total</b>			g expressed, o	r manner in	
RCD11	412	Receiving Condition Code	Х	ID	2/2	Used	
		<b>Description:</b> Code designating physical co shipment <b>All valid standard codes are used. (Total</b>			inits received in	n a specific	
Syntax Rules:							

1. R020406 - At least one of RCD02, RCD04 or RCD06 is required.

2. P0203 - If either RCD02 or RCD03 is present, then the other is required.

3. P0405 - If either RCD04 or RCD05 is present, then the other is required.

4. P060708 - If either RCD06, RCD07 or RCD08 are present, then the others are required.

5. P091011 - If either RCD09, RCD10 or RCD11 are present, then the others are required.

6. P121314 - If either RCD12, RCD13 or RCD14 are present, then the others are required.

7. P151617 - If either RCD15, RCD16 or RCD17 are present, then the others are required.

8. P181920 - If either RCD18, RCD19 or RCD20 are present, then the others are required.

#### Semantics:

1. RCD01 is the receiving advice line item identification.

2. RCD21 is the cumulative quantity of goods received for a specific time period.

#### Comments:

1. See the Data Element Dictionary for a complete list of receiving condition IDs.

2. RCD06 through RCD20 provide for five different quantities whose condition upon receipt is under question.



### **SN1 Item Detail (Shipment)**

User Option (Usage):

Used

#### Purpose:

To specify line-item detail relative to shipment

#### Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u> SN102	<u>ld</u> 382	<u>Element Name</u> Number of Units Shipped	Req M	Type R	<u>Min/Max</u> 1/10	<u>Usage</u> Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Numeric value of units shippe or transaction set	d in mar	nufacturer	's shipping uni	ts for a line item
SN103	355	Unit or Basis for Measurement Code	Μ	ID	2/2	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Code specifying the units in w which a measurement has been taken	hich a v	alue is be	ing expressed	, or manner in
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 794, Inc Code Name EA Each	luded: 1	)		
SN104	646	Quantity Shipped to Date	0	R	1/15	Used
		Description: Number of units shipped to da	ate			
SN105	330	Quantity Ordered	Х	R	1/15	Used
		Description: Quantity ordered				

#### Syntax Rules:

1. P0506 - If either SN105 or SN106 is present, then the other is required.

#### Semantics:

1. SN101 is the ship notice line-item identification.

#### Comments:

1. SN103 defines the unit of measurement for both SN102 and SN104.

### LIN Item Identification

#### User Option (Usage):

Used

#### Purpose:

To specify basic item identification data

#### Element Summary:

Ref	ld	Element Name	Req	Type	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
LIN02	235	Product/Service ID Qualifier	M	ID	2/2	Must use



		<b>Description:</b> Code identifying the type/source of the descriptive number used in Product/Service ID (234)					
		<u>Code</u>	<b>nmary</b> (Total Codes: 477, Inclue <u>Name</u> Buyer's Item Number	ded: 1)			
LIN03	234	Product/Servi	ice ID	Μ	AN	1/48	Must use
		Description:	Identifying number for a product	t or serv	/ice		
LIN04	235	Product/Servi	ice ID Qualifier	Х	ID	2/2	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Code identifying the type/source of the descriptive number used in Product/Service ID (234)				d in	
		<u>Code</u>	<b>nmary</b> (Total Codes: 477, Inclue <u>Name</u> Subline Item Number	ded: 1)			
LIN05	234	Product/Servi	ice ID	Х	AN	1/48	Used
		Description:	Identifying number for a product	t or serv	/ice		
LIN06	235	Product/Servi	ice ID Qualifier	Х	ID	2/2	Used
		<b>Description:</b> ( Product/Servic	Code identifying the type/source ce ID (234)	e of the	descriptive	e number used	t in
		Code I	<b>nmary</b> (Total Codes: 477, Inclue <u>Name</u> Vendor's (Seller's) Item Number Vendor's (Seller's) Part Number	r			
LIN07	234	Product/Servi	ice ID	Х	AN	1/48	Used
		Description:	Identifying number for a product	t or serv	/ice		

#### Syntax Rules:

P0405 - If either LIN04 or LIN05 is present, then the other is required.
 P0607 - If either LIN06 or LIN07 is present, then the other is required.
 P0809 - If either LIN08 or LIN09 is present, then the other is required.
 P1011 - If either LIN10 or LIN11 is present, then the other is required.
 P1213 - If either LIN12 or LIN13 is present, then the other is required.
 P1415 - If either LIN14 or LIN15 is present, then the other is required.
 P1617 - If either LIN16 or LIN17 is present, then the other is required.
 P1819 - If either LIN18 or LIN19 is present, then the other is required.
 P2021 - If either LIN20 or LIN21 is present, then the other is required.
 P2023 - If either LIN22 or LIN23 is present, then the other is required.
 P2627 - If either LIN24 or LIN25 is present, then the other is required.
 P2829 - If either LIN28 or LIN29 is present, then the other is required.
 P3031 - If either LIN30 or LIN31 is present, then the other is required.



#### Semantics:

1. LIN01 is the line item identification

#### Comments:

- 1. See the Data Dictionary for a complete list of IDs.
- 2. LIN02 through LIN31 provide for fifteen different product/service IDs for each item. For example: Case, Color, Drawing No., U.P.C. No., ISBN No., Model No., or SKU.

### **PID Product/Item Description**

User Option (Usage):

Used

#### Purpose:

To describe a product or process in coded or free-form format

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u> PID01	<u>ld</u> 349	<u>Element Name</u> Item Description Type	<u>Req</u> M	<u>Type</u> ID	<u>Min/Max</u> 1/1	<u>Usage</u> Must use	
	Description: Code indicating the format of a description						
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 3, In <u>Code</u> <u>Name</u> F Free-form	cluded: 1)				
PID05	352	Description	Х	AN	1/80	Used	

Description: A free-form description to clarify the related data elements and their content

#### Syntax Rules:

- 1. C0403 If PID04 is present, then PID03 is required.
- 2. R0405 At least one of PID04 or PID05 is required.
- 3. C0703 If PID07 is present, then PID03 is required.
- 4. C0804 If PID08 is present, then PID04 is required.
- 5. C0905 If PID09 is present, then PID05 is required.

#### Semantics:

- 1. Use PID03 to indicate the organization that publishes the code list being referred to.
- 2. PID04 should be used for industry-specific product description codes.
- PID08 describes the physical characteristics of the product identified in PID04. A "Y" indicates that the specified attribute applies to this item; an "N" indicates it does not apply. Any other value is indeterminate.
   PID09 is used to identificate here used in PID05.
- 4. PID09 is used to identify the language being used in PID05.

#### Comments:

- 1. If PID01 equals "F", then PID05 is used. If PID01 equals "S", then PID04 is used. If PID01 equals "X", then both PID04 and PID05 are used.
- 2. Use PID06 when necessary to refer to the product surface or layer being described in the segment.
- 3. PID07 specifies the individual code list of the agency specified in PID03.



### **REF Reference Identification**

User Option (Usage):

Used

Purpose:

To specify identifying information

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u> REF01	<u>ld</u> 128	Element Name Reference Identification Qualifier	<u>Req</u> M	Type ID	<u>Min/Max</u> 2/3	<u>Usage</u> Must use
		Description: Code qualifying the Reference	e Identifi	cation		
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 1503, IrCodeNameL9Customer's Part NumberR9Rejection NumberRVReceiving NumberZZMutually DefinedAAOCarrier Assigned Code	ncluded:	5)		
REF02	127	Reference Identification	Х	AN	1/30	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Reference information as def specified by the Reference Identification Qu		a particul	ar Transaction	Set or as
REF03	352	Description	Х	AN	1/80	Used
		Description: A free-form description to cla	rify the re	elated da	ta elements an	d their content

Syntax Rules:

1. R0203 - At least one of REF02 or REF03 is required.

Semantics:

1. REF04 contains data relating to the value cited in REF02.

### **PRF Purchase Order Reference**

User Option (Usage):

Used

Purpose:

To provide reference to a specific purchase order

**Element Summary:** 

<u>Ref</u> PRF01	<u>ld</u> 324	<u>Element Name</u> Purchase Order Number	<u>Req</u> М	<u>Type</u> AN	<u>Min/Max</u> 1/22	<u>Usage</u> Must use
		Description: Identifying number for Purcha	se Orde	r assigne	d by the order	er/purchaser
PRF02	328	Release Number	0	AN	1/30	Used



		<b>Description:</b> Number identifying a release age the parties involved in the transaction	gainst a	Purchase	Order previousl	y placed by
PRF03	327	Change Order Sequence Number	0	AN	1/8	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Number assigned by the ordered previously transmitted transaction set	er identi	fying a spe	cific change or	revision to a
PRF06	367	Contract Number	0	AN	1/30	Used
		Description: Contract number				
PRF07	92	Purchase Order Type Code	0	ID	2/2	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Code specifying the type of Purchase Order All valid standard codes are used. (Total Codes: 69)				

#### Semantics:

1. PRF04 is the date assigned by the purchaser to purchase order.



## **Loop Subline Item Detail**

User Option (Usage):

Used

#### **Purpose:**

To specify product subline detail item data

#### Loop Summary:

Pos	ld	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	<b>Repeat</b>	<u>Usage</u>
190	SLN	Subline Item Detail	0	1		Used

#### **SLN Subline Item Detail**

User Option (Usage):

Used

#### Purpose:

To specify product subline detail item data

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u> SLN01	<u>ld</u> 350	Element Name Assigned Identification	<u>Req</u> M	<u>Type</u> AN	<u>Min/Max</u> 1/20	<u>Usage</u> Must use
		Description: Alphanumeric characters assignment	gned for	different	iation within a t	ransaction set
SLN03	662	Relationship Code	Μ	ID	1/1	Must use
		Description: Code indicating the relationship	ip betwe	en entitie	es	
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 5, IncludCodeNameAAdd	led: 1)			
SLN06	212	Unit Price	Х	R	1/17	Used

**Description:** Price per unit of product, service, commodity, etc.

#### Syntax Rules:

1. P0405 - If either SLN04 or SLN05 is present, then the other is required.

- 2. C0706 If SLN07 is present, then SLN06 is required.
- 3. C0806 If SLN08 is present, then SLN06 is required.

4. P0910 - If either SLN09 or SLN10 is present, then the other is required.

5. P1112 - If either SLN11 or SLN12 is present, then the other is required.

6. P1314 - If either SLN13 or SLN14 is present, then the other is required.

7. P1516 - If either SLN15 or SLN16 is present, then the other is required. 8. P1718 - If either SLN17 or SLN18 is present, then the other is required.

9. P1920 - If either SLN19 or SLN20 is present, then the other is required.

10. P2122 - If either SLN21 or SLN22 is present, then the other is required.

11. P2324 - If either SLN23 or SLN24 is present, then the other is required.



12. P2526 - If either SLN25 or SLN26 is present, then the other is required.

13. P2728 - If either SLN27 or SLN28 is present, then the other is required.

#### Semantics:

- 1. SLN01 is the identifying number for the subline item.
- 2. SLN02 is the identifying number for the subline level. The subline level is analogous to the level code used in a bill of materials.
- 3. SLN03 is the configuration code indicating the relationship of the subline item to the baseline item.
- 4. SLN08 is a code indicating the relationship of the price or amount to the associated segment.

#### Comments:

- 1. See the Data Element Dictionary for a complete list of IDs.
- 2. SLN01 is related to (but not necessarily equivalent to) the baseline item number. Example: 1.1 or 1A might be used as a subline number to relate to baseline number 1.
- 3. SLN09 through SLN28 provide for ten different product/service IDs for each item. For example: Case, Color, Drawing No., U.P.C. No., ISBN No., Model No., or SKU.



# **CTT Transaction Totals**

User Option (Usage):

Used

Purpose:

To transmit a hash total for a specific element in the transaction set

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u> CTT01	<u>ld</u> 354	<u>Element Name</u> Number of Line Items	<u>Req</u> M	<u>Type</u> N0	<u>Min/Max</u> 1/6	<u>Usage</u> Must use	
		Description: Total number of line items in the	he trans	action se	t		
CTT02	347	Hash Total	0	R	1/10	Used	
		<b>Description:</b> Sum of values of the specified data element. All values in the data element will be summed without regard to decimal points (explicit or implicit) or signs. Truncation will occur on the left most digits if the sum is greater than the maximum size of the hash total of the data element. Example:0018 First occurrence of value being hashed18 Second occurrence of value being hashed. 1.8 Third occurrence of value being hashed. 18.01 Fourth occurrence of value being hashed 1855 Hash total prior to truncation. 855 Hash total after truncation to three-digit field.					
CTT03	81	Weight	Х	R	1/10	Used	
	Description: Numeric value of weight						
CTT04	355	Unit or Basis for Measurement Code	Х	ID	2/2	Used	
		Description: Code specifying the units in w which a measurement has been taken All valid standard codes are used. (Total			eing expressed	l, or manner in	
CTT05	183	Volume	Х	R	1/8	Used	
		Description: Value of volumetric measure					
CTT06	355	Unit or Basis for Measurement Code	Х	ID	2/2	Used	
		<b>Description:</b> Code specifying the units in which a value is being expressed, or manner in which a measurement has been taken All valid standard codes are used. (Total Codes: 794)					
CTT07	352	Description	0	AN	1/80	Used	
		Description: A free-form description to clari	ify the re	elated dat	ta elements an	d their content	

#### Syntax Rules:

1. P0304 - If either CTT03 or CTT04 is present, then the other is required.

2. P0506 - If either CTT05 or CTT06 is present, then the other is required.

#### Comments:

1. This segment is intended to provide hash totals to validate transaction completeness and correctness.



## **SE Transaction Set Trailer**

User Option (Usage):

Must use

Purpose:

To indicate the end of the transaction set and provide the count of the transmitted segments (including the beginning (ST) and ending (SE) segments)

#### Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u> SE01	<u>ld</u> 96	Element Name Number of Included Segments	<u>Req</u> M	Type N0	<u>Min/Max</u> 1/10	<u>Usage</u> Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Total number of segments inc segments	luded in	a transa	ction set includ	ing ST and SE
SE02	329	Transaction Set Control Number	Μ	AN	4/9	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Identifying control number tha functional group assigned by the originator f				saction set

#### Comments:

1. SE is the last segment of each transaction set.



### **GE Functional Group Trailer**

User Option (Usage):

Must use

Purpose:

To indicate the end of a functional group and to provide control information

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u> GE01	<u>ld</u> 97	<u>Element Name</u> Number of Transaction Sets Included	Req M	Type N0	<u>Min/Max</u> 1/6	<u>Usage</u> Must use	
		<b>Description:</b> Total number of transaction so interchange (transmission) group terminated			0		
GE02	28	Group Control Number	Μ	N0	1/9	Must use	
		Description: Assigned number originated and maintained by the sender					

#### Semantics:

1. The data interchange control number GE02 in this trailer must be identical to the same data element in the associated functional group header, GS06.

#### Comments:

1. The use of identical data interchange control numbers in the associated functional group header and trailer is designed to maximize functional group integrity. The control number is the same as that used in the corresponding header.



### **IEA Interchange Control Trailer**

User Option (Usage):

Must use

Purpose:

To define the end of an interchange of zero or more functional groups and interchange-related control segments

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u> IEA01	<u>ld</u> I16	<u>Element Name</u> Number of Included Functional Groups	Req M	Type N0	<u>Min/Max</u> 1/5	<u>Usage</u> Must use		
		Description: A count of the number of func-	oups incl	cluded in an interchange	erchange			
IEA02	112	Interchange Control Number	Μ	N0	9/9	Must use		
		Description: A control number assigned by the interchange sender						

### Samples

ISA\*00\* \*00\* \*ZZ\*941714834VANP \*supplier qual\*supplier ISA ID \*130207\*0506\*U\*00401\*000011238\*0\*P\*~ GS\*RC\*9417148340059\*supplier GS ID\*20130207\*0506\*397\*X\*004010 ST\*861\*070506782 BRA\*104228933\*20130207\*00\*2 **REF\*VR\*supplier BP code** REF\*PK\*7217714-01 DTM\*008\*20130207\*044302 RCD\*\*2\*EA\*\*\*0\*EA\*08\*0\*EA\*02 SN1\*\*2\*EA\*2\*2\*EA LIN\*\*IN\*TLS2H-126.1729\*A7\*1\*VN\*LCMXO640C-3TN100I PID\*F\*\*\*\*PLD HD 640LUT XTMP LCMXO640C-3 REF\*L9\*126.1729 REF\*RV\*104228933 REF\*ZZ\*J59JW1\*Jetway 1 PRF\*J59N09539\*450\*0\*\*\*\*SA SLN\*1\*\*A\*\*\*5.56 CTT\*1 SE\*16\*070506782 GE\*1\*397 IEA\*1\*000011238

### For more information, please visit www.flextronics.com

Flextronics is a leading Electronics Manufacturing Services (EMS) provider that offers complete design, engineering, and manufacturing services to aerospace, automotive, computing, consumer digital, industrial, infrastructure, medical and mobile OEM customers. With a network of facilities in 30 countries, Flextronics helps customers design, manufacture, distribute and service electronics products worldwide.

Copyright © 2012, Flextronics. All rights reserved. No part of this document may be reproduced in any form without the prior written permission of Flextronics.

